CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - FEBRUARY 7, 2017

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on February 7, 2017, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ron Taylor, Chairman
Janet DePuy, Vice Chair
Bill Ferrell, Commissioner
Tom Maxwell, Commissioner
Randy Roland, Commissioner
Stephen Springs, Commissioner
Ken Southard, Alternate
Dorthy McKearin, Alternate

MEMBERS ABSENT: Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs. — Planning
Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner
Mohamed Bireima, Planner
Amy Mathews, Senior Planner
Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding
staff reports, agenda items and rezoning initiatives. No action was taken.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

MINUTES

1. Approval of minutes of the regular business meeting of January 17, 2017.

Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by
Commissioner Maxwell. Motion approved 7-0.

CONSENT ITEMS
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission and
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items
unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate
consideration.

2. Site and Landscape Plans — Stackmatch Flare Ignition: A request for approval of a revised site
and landscape plan for the construction of a 7,950-square foot second floor within the existing
20,555-square foot single story building. The 1.16-acre site is located at 1101 Commerce Drive,
on the north side of Commerce Drive, west of Glenville Drive.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;
second by Commissioner Roland. Motion approved 7-0.

Ds:CPC/2017/2017-02-07 Minutes.doc



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

February 7, 2017

PUBLIC HEARINGS

3. Replat — Richardson Business Center, Lots 4A & 5, Block 1: Consider and take the necessary
action on a request for approval of a replat of Lot 4, Block 1 to subdivide a single lot into two (2)
lots to accommodate the sale of a 1.73-acre lot. The 8.13-acre site is located at 701-715 N.
Glenville Drive, west side of Glenville Drive, south of Arapaho Road.

Mr. Bireima stated the purpose of the replat was to subdivide the property into two lots to
accommodate the sale of a 1.73-acre lot. He added there was no new development associated with
the replat and the request complied with the City’s subdivision and zoning regulations.

With no questions from staff, Chairman Taylor opened the public hearing.

Mr. Maxwell Fisher, Masterplan, 900 Jackson Street, Dallas, Texas, representing Industry Capital,
stated the purpose of the replat was to separate the 705 N. Glenville Drive building from the
remaining buildings, and he reiterated that no substantial improvement was being proposed at the
current time.

No other comments, in favor or opposed, were received and Chairman Taylor closed the public
hearing.

Motion: Commissioner Ferrell made a motion to approve the replat as presented; second by
Commissioner Southard. Motion approved 7-0.

4. Zoning File 17-01 — Bilingual Whiz Kids Private School: Consider and take the necessary
action on a request for approval of a Special Permit for a childcare center and private school. The
site is located at 720 W. Lookout Drive and is zoned R-1250-M Residential.

Ms. Mathews stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit to operate a childcare center and
private school within the education building at an existing synagogue. She added the private
school would provide a full immersion language program with the goal of achieving bilingualism.

Ms. Mathews said the applicant indicated the maximum enrollment capacity would be within the
approved state ratios (170 students); however, the enrollment most likely would go no higher than
120 students.

In concluding her presentation, Ms. Mathews reviewed the size and location of the site, as well as
presenting photographs of the buildings, playground and drop off location.

With no questions for staff, Chairman Taylor opened the public hearing.
Mr. Randall Reid, 801 Charlotte Drive, McKinney, Texas, stated he and his wife, Monica Reid,
would be the co-owners and operators of the language immersion pre-school with an emphasis on

Chinese and Spanish languages. He explained the process and benefits of working with children
starting in infancy to develop bilingual capabilities and the advantages gained from those skills.

Ds:CPC/2017/2017-02-07 CPCMinutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

February 7, 2017

Mrs. Reid said all five of her children were participants in early childhood language immersion
programs and felt the ability to be bilingual fostered pride in the students as well as an appreciation
of another culture. She asked the Commission to think of what children could realize when they
were able to speak, read and write fluently in the three most spoken languages in the world:
English, Spanish and Mandarin.

Commissioner DePuy asked if the applicants had previously owned a language immersion school.

Mr. Reid replied the proposed school would be their first time opening and running an immersion
school, but they had participated in a language immersion school as parents while previously living
in Arizona.

Mrs. Reid added that most multi-lingual, immersion programs came from grass-roots efforts by the
parents, which was where they received most of their experience.

Commissioner Southard asked how they would market their school.

Mrs. Reid replied that language immersion schools were very popular and word of mouth
recommendations among parents were the norm. She added they anticipated that within three
years they would be at full capacity.

With no other comments in favor, Chairman Taylor called for comments in opposition.

Mr. Bill Witten, 723 Pleasant Valley Lane, Richardson, Texas, said his property was immediately
behind the property in question and noted there was already an English language school operating
on the site and wondered if the two schools would be operating at the same time. He also noted
there were problems with individuals loitering around the area as well as problems with trash and
with landscaping being trampled.

Mr. Witten said that although he was in favor of the language immersion school, he had concerns
about two schools operating at the same site.

Mr. Reid replied that the existing school would be leaving at the end of March and the language
immersion school would open in August.

No other comments or questions, in favor or opposed, were received and Chairman Taylor closed
the public hearing.

Commissioner Ferrell asked if the Special Permit would be issued to the applicant or the location.
Mr. Chavez replied the Special Permit would be tied to the property. He added that in regards to
the concerns about the landscaping, staff would review the site and landscape plans and contact

would be made with the Community Services Department to conduct a site visit to check for
compliance.

Ds:CPC/2017/2017-02-07 CPCMinutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

February 7, 2017

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 17-01 as
presented including the special conditions listed in the staff report; second by
Commissioner McKearin. Motion approved 7-0.

5. Zoning File 17-02 — Carpe Diem Private School: Consider and take the necessary action on a
request for approval of a Special Permit for a childcare center. The site is located at 271 E. Renner
Road and is zoned O-M Office.

Ms. Mathews advised the existing private school/childcare received a Special Permit in September
of 2000, which was limited to Ashley Murphree, Carpe Diem School. Ms. Murphree no longer
owns the facility and the new owner was requesting the condition limiting the Special Permit to
Ms. Murphree, Carpe Diem School be removed. She added that no changes were being proposed
to the building or the site and that it would still operate as the Carpe Diem School.

Commissioner Springs asked staff if the special conditions required in the previous Special Permit
regarding bricks and mortar were in place and would carry over to the new Special Permit.

Ms. Mathews confirmed the special conditions had been confirmed by staff.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Taylor opened the public hearing.

Mr. Wesley Bailey, Coffin & Bailey, representing the Endeavor Schools, 7557 Rainbow Road,
Dallas, Texas, stated he was available for any questions the Commission might have, however,

none were asked.

No other questions or comments, in favor or opposed, were received and Chairman Taylor closed
the public hearing.

Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 17-02 as
presented; second by Commissioner Roland. Motion approved 7-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Taylor adjourned the regular business
meeting at 7:40 p.m.

Ron Taylor, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2017/2017-02-07 CPCMinutes.doc 4





